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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE MIDDLE DISTRICTOF PENNSYLVANIA

JUAN CONCEPCION, - Civil No. 1:11-cv-2225
Petitioner, :
V.
DAVID VARANO,

Respondent. Judge Sylvia H. Rambo

MEMORANDUM

Before the court is a report anecommendation filed bthe magistrate
judge in which she recommends that th@a@ing two issues in the petition filed
by Juan Concepcion pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 2254 be dismissed with préjudice.
The remaining two claims for habeas reli@folve (1) an alleged violation of the
double jeopardy clause (Doc. 1, p. 13;,cD63, p. 10); and (2) improper venue and
vicinage. Objections have been fil&a the report andecommendation, and the
government has filed an opposition to those objections. For the reasons that folloy,
the report and recommernaa will be adopted.

l. L egal Standard

Under 28 U.S.C. § 2254(da]n application for a writ of habeas corpus

on behalf of a person in custody pursuanthe judgment of a State court shall not

! Concepcion was convicted in the Juai@ourt of Common Pleas on July 24, 2008 of
possession with intent to deliver a controlgdbstance, criminal use of a communication
facility, corrupt organizations, criminal congpty, and dealings in proceeds of unlawful
activities. The background and procedural histifrthis proceeding are adequately set forth in
the report and recommendatiand will be adopted herein.
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be granted with respect to any clainatthivas adjudicated on the merits” unless
such adjudication “resulted in a deosi that was contrary to . . . clearly
established Federal law, dstermined by the Supreme@@t of the United States.”
28 U.S.C. § 2254(d)(1).

. Discussion

a. Double Jeopardy Claim

Concepcion argues that Counts 1 an@a@ssession with intent to deliver
a controlled substance) and Counts 2 aridelivery of a controlled substance) of
the Indictment were aggregate charged thus multiplicitous as the conduct was
continuance in nature, and therefoamstitute a double jeopardy violation.

In this case, the Pennsylvania Stume Court found that Concepcion’s
acts were with different people at diffateimes and involved different amounts,
and rejected the argument that the esnmhad to merge. The court relied on
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania v. Williams, 958 A.2d 522 (Pa. Super. 2008) and
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania v. McCalman, 795 A.2d 412 (Pa. Super. 2002)
wherein the Superior Court had previoustyected merger guments similar to
those presented by Concepcion.

In Ohio v. Johnson, 467 U.S. 493 (1984), the Supreme Court held that,
“[b]ecause the substantive power to prése crimes and determine punishments is

vested with the legislature, the question under the Double Jeopardy Clause whett

her




punishments are ‘multiple’ is essefiffaone of legislative intent.”ld. at 499
(internal citations omitted).

The Pennsylvania statute at issire this case states: “[e]xcept as
authorized by this act, the manufactudelivery, or possession with intent to
manufacture or deliver, a controlled subs& by a person not registered under this
act . . . or knowingly creating, deliveriry possessing with intent to deliver, a
counterfeit controlled substance [is prated].” 35 Pa. C.S.A8780-113(a)(30). In
examining this statute, Pennsylvania colrésve concluded that each instance of
drug possession and delivery constitute se¢paets and are not the same offense
for purposes of doubleopardy and merger.

In United Sates v. Kennedy, 682 F.3d 244, 257 (3d Cir. 2012), the Third
Circuit held “that the acts of possemsi and distribution involved discrete
guantities of narcotics,” as in the instaase, and are not subject to merger.

This court must defer to state apptlaourt determinations of state law
guestions. Furthermore, the Pennsylvamiarthas not rendere decision in this
case that is contrary to clearly establifederal law. Accoraigly, there has been
no violation of the double jeopardy clause.

b. Venue Claim

Concepcion argues that his trialdnniata County was improper under

the Sixth Amendment. He claims thas lnight to a speedy trial by peers from his




own community was violated when has tried by citizens of Juniata County
instead of Dauphin County where he is adest and where he distributed drugs to
co-conspirators. He claims that he nedistributed drugs to anyone in Juniata
County.

Concepcion was charged with criralrconspiracy to possess with the
intent to deliver a controlleslubstance. The Third Cintinas held that “venue can
be established wherever a co-conspirbtts committed an awt furtherance of
the conspiracy.United Satesv. Perez, 280 F.3d 318, 318¢ Cir. 2002) (citing
Hyde v. United Sates, 225 U.S. 347, 363-64 (1912)). Juniata County was
considered the appropriate venue by thpesior Court because that was where the
drugs were distributed by Concepcion’s co-conspirators to whom hé sold.

1. Conclusion

Based on the foregoing, the petitiofllwe dismissed. An appropriate
order will issue.

s/SylviaH. Rambo
SYLVIA H. RAMBO
United Statedistrict Judge

Dated: November 30, 2017

2 The magistrate judge also addressed the iswether the vicinagprovision of the Sixth
Amendment has been violated. Vicinage referthe geographical area from which jurors may
be drawn. As the magistrate judge and resporu@nt out, this argument was not presented in
the initial petition or before thetate court, and furthermore, thiird Circuit has held that the
Sixth Amendment vicinage provision is not applieado state criminal trials. This court agrees
and will not address the issue, assihot properly before the court.
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